2001

# Glenn C. Shaw v. Ashley L. Robison, Kovo Inc v. First Media Corporation : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

## NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action under the receivership laws of Utah, involving the two equal shareholders of KOVO, Inc., a Utah corporation, which resulted from a deadlock in the management of the corporation.

## DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

After determining that a deadlock existed and appointing a receiver for the corporation, and after repeatedly and consistently encouraging settlement by the

two shareholders of their differences, the Lower Court ordered that the Receiver sell the corporation's assets to a third party notwithstanding a prior complete settlement by the shareholders of their differences and their joint petition to dissolve the receivership.

### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Both of the shareholders of KOVO, Inc. seek (1) to have set aside the order that the Receiver sell the corporation's assets, and (2) a remand of this case with directions that the Lower Court honor the settlement made by the owners and dismiss the receivership under appropriate safeguards for the rights of all interested parties. In the alternative, appellants seek a determination by this Court that the contract proposed to the Court for approval fails in important respects to properly protect the interests of appellants and a remand of the case with directions that the Lower Court insure that the rights and interests of appellants are properly and adequately protected in any contract provisions which it may hereafter approve.

### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Clearly this action involving receivership laws and accounting between the parties is an equity proceeding. 19 Am. Jur. 2d, *Corporations*, § 1610, p.970; *West v. West*, 16 Utah 2d 411, 403 P.2d 22 (1965). And, being

an equity proceeding, the rule to be followed on this appeal is as stated by this Court in *Reiman v. Baum*, 115 Utah 147, 203 P.2d 387 (1949):

“In equity proceedings in this jurisdiction, this court reviews both law and facts . . . we review the record and pass on the weight and sufficiency of the evidence . . . we determine where lies the preponderance of the evidence . . . ”

To the same effect are *Coombs v. Ouzounian*, 24 Utah 2d 39, 465 P.2d 356 (1970); *Provo City v. Jacobsen*, 111 Utah 39, 176 P.2d 130 (1947).

The further rule that review on appeal of equity proceedings

“is in the light most favorable to the findings of the trial court, who heard the evidence and observed the witnesses” *Coombs v. Ouzounian*, 24 Utah 2d 39, 465 P.2d 356, 357 (1970).

would have no application to the present case since the Lower Court concluded at the conclusion of the evidence, and all counsel agreed, that “there is really no material conflict in the evidence” and “I don’t have any fact issues to decide.” (Transcript of Hearing on July 3, 1974, p.52). Due to the equity nature of this proceeding and the importance of the specific things done the Statement of Facts which follows is more detailed than usual.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

The plaintiff Glenn C. Shaw, hereinafter sometimes referred to as "Shaw," and the defendant Ashley L. Robison, hereinafter sometimes referred to as "Robison" are the two equal shareholders of KOVO, Inc., a Utah corporation, hereinafter referred to as "KOVO," which for many years has owned and operated radio station KOVO in Provo, Utah. As a result of serious differences and ill will between Shaw and Robison, the management of the station and its business affairs became deadlocked. This action was commenced by Shaw for the appointment of a Receiver and an accounting by Robison and the corporation. Robison counterclaimed for an accounting by Shaw and for damages. In addition Shaw and Robison each claimed that substantial personal obligations were owed by the other and each claimed that the other was liable for mismanagement and defamation.

Although the deadlock in the management was apparent soon after the action was filed, (T. May 16, 1973, p.7 line 22) the Lower Court was extremely reluctant to appoint a Receiver in view of the fact that the corporation was not insolvent. (T. Aug. 31, 1973, p.7 line 14, p. 11 line 3; T. Sept. 6, 1973, p. 59 line 24, p. 60 line 1 and line 7, p. 61 line 5) At the urging of the Lower Court an interim arrangement was worked out in April, 1973 (T. April 24, 1973) soon after the suit was filed.



That arrangement failed and, again at the Lower Court's urging, a second interim arrangement was worked out (T. May 16, 1973) in an effort to avoid the necessity for the court to appoint a Receiver.

Because of a continuing series of differences and problems further hearings were held in the Lower Court in late August (T. Aug. 31, 1973) and early September, 1973 (T. Sept. 6, 1973) and a Receiver was finally appointed. (T. Sept. 6, 1973, p.68 line 22) In requesting that a Receiver be appointed, notwithstanding the Lower Court's reluctance, it was specifically urged that the court appoint a Receiver to provide independent management in order to permit (1) the parties to work out a sale by one to the other, or (2) the sale to a third party. (T. Aug. 31, 1973, p.22 line 4, p.23 line 12) Even at that time the scope of the accounting dispute was narrowing (T. Aug. 31, 1973, p.9 lines 19-21) and there were signs that with independent management there was a possibility of working out a buy-sell between the owners (T. Aug. 31, 1973, p.22 line 24)

In appointing the Receiver the Lower Court granted him full authority "to carry on routine and usual management activities" but directed that

"any unusual or extraordinary expense or management decision must be approved by the Court after notice to all interested parties and hearing before the Court.

“6. No property, assets or rights of the corporation shall be sold or encumbered in whole or in part until approved by the Court after notice to all interested parties and hearing before the Court.” (R. 107; T. Sept. 6, 1973, p.71 line 20)

The Court then restated the same guideline in more specific terms:

“I have one other limitation I want to put in expressly. *No sale* of the business or any of the assets in whole or in part *will be binding upon the corporation until it has . . . prior approval of the Court.* That is the probate rule, gentlemen.” (T. Sept. 6, 1973, p.72 line 17) (Emphasis added)

At the conclusion of the hearing on September 6, 1973, after the Receiver had been selected and his appointment had been arranged, (T. Sept. 6, 1973, p.70 line 27) the Lower Court clearly stated, in response to counsel's specific inquiry, consistent with the continuing serious effects of the parties toward settlement and the Court's continuing representations to the parties that if a settlement could be achieved between Shaw and Robison the receivership would be terminated.

“MR STOTT: One other question if I may, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. STOTT: I suppose it's easier to clarify them now than come back again. *In the event the agreement is arrived at between the parties in*

this matter *as to the sale or purchase* of the corporation, I suppose *at that time the receiver would be dissolved and we would have no problem as far as —*

THE COURT: *Not only would you have no problems, but the Court would be more than happy to entertain that petition. I might even entertain that not on notice. Not quite that far, but I would be more than happy to see that happen. As a matter of fact, that is what I thought I was achieving last April.*

MR. STOTT: *I assumed that was the case.*"  
(T. Sept. 6, 1973, p. 76 line 11) (Emphasis added.)

The Court also explicitly left the owners free to sell or transfer their KOVO stock to each other or to third parties, (T. Sept. 6, 1973, p. 75 line 7) and this freedom was never restricted in any way thereafter.

This very strong indication from the Court of its desire that the owners continue their efforts to settle their own dispute, and the Court's specific assurance that the owners would have no problem in the event of a settlement, in having the receivership terminated, left the owners and their counsel with every reason to believe that their continuing efforts at settlement, if successful, would be honored, at least until a sale of the assets of the corporation had been finalized and completed. The Court's pointed and explicit encouragement

to the owners to settle, moreover, continued consistently thereafter until after such a settlement was finally achieved. Then, surprisingly, the settlement was rejected by the court.

Following appointment of the Receiver there were further discussions regarding settlement but the lack of sufficient financial backing proved to be a serious handicap. In the meantime the Receiver, and the parties as well, encouraged interest from third parties to purchase the radio station. Having received various offers to purchase, counsel for the Receiver in a hearing before the Court on January 24, 1974 gave a brief status report and then indicated:

“we hope . . . within a very short time (to) present to the Court . . . those (offers) we consider to be the highest and best offer, and to *seek approval* from the Court at that time to *proceed with further negotiations and a final contract* with the parties — the Court finds to be the highest and best offeror.” (T. Jan. 24, 1974, p.4 line 11)

At that same hearing the Court characteristically encouraged the parties:

“You gentlemen get together during the next recess I am going to call and quit kidding yourselves and get your pencils out and start arriving some way to find this fiaseo up.” (T. Jan. 24, 1974, p.67 line 6)

On January 30, 1974 the Receiver petitioned the Court for a hearing on various purchase offers he had received and, *following the hearing*, (R. 151) for an order

“authorizing the Receiver to *negotiate and execute an appropriate contract* of sale of the corporate assets . . . ” (R. 151) (Emphasis added.)

At a hearing on the Receiver’s Motion on February 6, 1974 counsel for the Receiver explained that following the presentation of the offers and selection of the highest and best one, the Receiver would *then* request

“that the Court authorize the receiver to *proceed to negotiate a firm and binding contract* of sale . . . ” (T. Feb. 6, 1974, p.2 line 9) (Emphasis added.)

Again at that hearing, at which Intervenor’s counsel was present, the Court strongly encouraged settlement, which at that time was still being actively pursued by the parties.

“I should imagine the only matter the receiver would be interested in is, and is first and the one that *would make me most happy, for the shareholders to agree on something*. The course this matter has taken since I reluctantly allowed you to get the Court involved would indicate to me it would be difficult to get them to agree to the time of day. (T. Feb. 6, 1974, p.3)

“I think you know, Mr. Roberts, that I don’t feel very comfortable with a matter like this before me. Would there be any useful purpose served in Counsel getting together and arriving at what proposition would be to the best advantage of the shareholders?

MR. ROBERTS: Your Honor, I have seriously attempted to do that by way of individual conversations with Counsel for both the shareholders. My opinion is that —

THE COURT: At least they’re talking to each other, aren’t they?

MR. ROBERTS: The attorneys?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. ROBERTS: Yes, they are. Yes, they are. And again I am not challenging the good faith of anyone.

THE COURT: Neither am I. In a matter of this nature there are bound to be differences of opinion. The whole nub of the thing is *I would be most happy if a modus operandi could be worked out or a proposal acceptable to all parties could be arrived at without the interest of the Court.*

MR. ROBERTS: *I would be most pleased if we could do that, Your Honor.”* (T. Feb. 6, 1974, p.4)

The Court further said

*“My concern is to try to see to it that whoever submits the offer that the Court accepts will be that which is acceptable to Mr. Martineau and his client and Mr. Stott and his client. You understand that this is not a liquidating receivership.*

MR. HARDY: *I understand.* (T. Feb. 6, 1974, p.10 line 21) (Emphasis added.)

Mr. Hardy, the attorney representing the Intervenor, FMC, was as noted, present throughout the hearing on February 6, 1974.

At the conclusion of that hearing the Court instructed the Receiver to study the offers and make a recommendation to the Court. On February 21, 1974 the Receiver recommended the FMC offer over the equivalent offer of Robison and the superior offer of Shaw, (R. 170, 171) as a matter of equality of treatment of the two shareholders. (R. 171). On February 22, 1974 the Court accepted “the report and recommendation of the receiver” and directed that the receiver

“proceed to accept the offer of F.M.C., Inc., and proceed with all reasonable dispatch to conclude sale to the offeror.” (R. 173)

It was understood by the Receiver and his counsel that the Court intended by this order not to create a binding contract but only to give FMC an exclusive opportunity

to negotiate further with the Receiver. The Receiver, for example, testified:

“Q. Wasn’t that letter that you received initially from FMC after the Court’s order of February 22nd *used merely as the basis for negotiation* of a definite contract?

A. I assumed that these offers were to be presented to the Court, the Court would then make its decision as to which offer it would recommend, and *then proceedings would be had from that point on to conclude a contract.*

Q. You understand the Court’s order would be merely that one of these offers would be selected so further negotiations could be had?

A. *When a contract was finished, then the Court would approve that contract.*

Q. Yes, *that would be presented to the Court before it became finalized?*

A. Yes.

Q. *That is what is before the Court now in connection with your motion that Mr. Greene just mentioned, isn’t that true?*

A. *That is what I understand.*

Q. And you have *never told FMC that they had a contract* have you?

A. Well, I think *that goes without saying.*



Q. You have never told them that their offer was accepted as such, have you?

A. Well, I don't think I could until it was approved by either Mr. Roberts or the Judge.

Q. You mean the definitive-final detailed contract?

A. I left all those matters up to Mr. Roberts to work out.

Q. Okay. And you expected that before it became final it would be approved by the Court?

A. Yes

Q. And that *it would be executed by you*"

A. *After approval of the Court?*

Q. Yes. *But you haven't executed it at this point*, have you?

A. I don't believe I have."  
(T. June 28, 1974, p.128, 129) (Emphasis added.)

Similarly the Receiver's counsel testified:

*"[W]hat I intended to do as counsel for the receiver was to negotiate, complete the negotiations of the contract along the lines of the FMC offer, and I understand procedurally it would be resubmitted to the Court for final approval.*

THE COURT: I suppose you thought you were *carrying out the order* of February the 22nd?

MR. ROBERTS: *That is what I thought I was doing . . . procedurally I understand there would have to be further approval by the Court.*" (T. June 28, 1974, p.137 line 5-12, 16-17) (Emphasis added.)

Counsel's letter dated February 27, 1974 advising Mr. Hardy for FMC that the Receiver's recommendation of the FMC offer shows a similar understanding of the Court's order. He there requested

"would you kindly, therefore, submit to me the draft contract *so that we may proceed* as soon as possible *to negotiate* all final terms and finalize the matter. (R. 314) (Emphasis added.)

In connection with a general objection to the Receiver's report and the Court's order of February 22, 1974 approving the Receiver's recommendations counsel for Robison filed an objection on March 7, 1974 (R. 177) in which he complained that "the acceptance of any offer to sell the assets of KOVO, Inc. . . . is premature." (R. 177). At a hearing on that objection on March 15, 1974 the Court assured counsel for Mr. Robison and the parties that he considered the FMC letter offer of January 15, 1974 (R. 141) to be merely an offer to negotiate and the basis for negotiation and not an acceptance of as an offer or a sale as such. (T. June 28, 1974, p.6 line 2)

Although it was indicated in the Minute Entry that the hearing was reported, for some unexplained reason no record of it could be found. An affidavit from Attorney Stott, confirming the statement of Shaw's counsel to the Court, not disputed by the Court, as to what occurred at that hearing, as noted in the last record reference above was, suprisingly, not admitted by the Court, but was left in the record as a proffer of proof. (R. 311) Suffice it to say, there is no dispute that such assurances was given by the Court at that time a considerable time after the court's February order. Further, Intervenor is charged with notice of that proceeding and the Court's assurances given there which were consistent with his assurances given September 6, 1973.

In all events, the parties relied upon that assurance by the Court, which was in all respects consistent with their understanding that they had a continuing right to settle their differences if they could. (T. June 28, 1974, p.6 lines 11-22) That assurance was also consistent with the prior and subsequent strong encouragement by the Court of a settlement between the parties. It is also consistent with the Court's order overruling Robison's objections dated March 27, 1974 which provided:

“It is hereby ordered that the Objection of Ashley L. Robison to the Order of this Court authorizing the Receiver *to proceed to negotiate a sale* with FMC Corporation are hereby overruled and denied.” (R. 182) (Emphasis added.)

Following the receipt by the Receiver's counsel of a draft of a detailed agreement of sale in March, 1974 he furnished copies to counsel for Shaw and Robison and conferred with them to receive their suggestions and objections. Both raised serious objections to many of the provisions which were added to or substantially different from those contained in the original letter offer. (T. June 28, 1974, p.140; R. 378-387) Significantly, an extremely important and extremely harsh Escrow Agreement (R. 388) which was to have been a part of the overall sales agreement was never furnished to counsel for either Shaw or Robison until late June, 1974 and only then because it was specifically requested. Nor did it accompany the proposed contract submitted to the Court for approval. (R. 186-259) Nor was any form of Employment Agreement, which also was to have been a part of the proposed contract, ever submitted to the Court. The many substantial changes and additions actually proposed, as well as the incompleteness of the documents submitted to the Court for approval demonstrated the very general and preliminary nature of FMC's original bid and the need which then remained and still remains for further negotiations to refine and formalize any binding agreement.

Having ignored, or at least having failed to incorporate into the sales agreement, even the most important of the owners' serious objections, and having failed even to furnish copies of the harsh Escrow Agreement to counsel or the Court, and having made no effort to discuss

or complete the contemplated Employment Agreements with Shaw and Robison, the Receiver on May 13, 1974 filed his Motion to Authorize Execution of Sales Contract. (R. 186-259) The Receiver's Motion shows clearly his understanding, and that of his counsel, that even at that date there had been no binding contract made with the Intervenor. The Receiver properly petitioned:

“That the Court enter its order *approving the execution* of the document by the receiver *in a manner which is binding upon KOVO, Inc.*” (R. 186-187) (Emphasis added.)

Relying upon the Lower Court's continuing and definite urging that it would like the parties to settle their differences, and its clear and specific assurance that if the owners' differences were resolved, it would terminate the receivership, the owners and their counsel continued to explore and narrow down the avenues of possible compromise. Sources of financial backing for a buy-sell arrangement, at first almost wholly lacking, became conditionally available. Furthermore, the negotiations concentrated on not only a sale of the business but a complete settlement of all of the very broad and difficult issues, claims and differences between the parties as well.

With substantial financial backing finally available, (T. June 7, 1974, p.10 line 4) definite proposals for settlement were discussed between counsel for Shaw and Robison on May 1, 1974. (T. July 3, 1974, p.10). In a

meeting between the owners and their counsel on May 3, 1974 a format for settlement negotiations was worked out. During the ensuing ten-day period four additional meetings were held involving counsel and the parties to further narrow the areas of difference. (T. July 3, 1974, p.11-12) All of the foregoing, of course, occurred before the Receiver's Motion to Authorize Execution of Sales Contract, dated May 11, 1974 had been received.

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