2001

Glenn C. Shaw v. Ashley L. Robison, Kovo Inc v. First Media Corporation : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE ACTION OF THE LOWER COURT ORDERING COMPLETION OF THE SALE TO RESPONDENT FMC WAS PROPER.

The Order of the Lower Court appealed from herein states:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED

AND DECREED that the Receiver's Motion dated May 11, 1974, is hereby granted and thereby Receiver is authorized to execute the "Agreement For The Sale And Purchase of Assets" attached to said Motion, and to proceed with all reasonable dispatch to do whatever is necessary to conclude the sale relative to the assets of KOVO, Inc. to First Media (R. 401).

A. The Lower Court Properly Held that It had Accepted the Written Offer of FMC to Purchase the Assets of KOVO, Inc.

1. The Court Order of February 22, 1974, Constituted Acceptance of FMC's Offer.

The facts in this case are easily distilled into the basic contractual concept of an offer by FMC to purchase the KOVO, Inc. assets, and acceptance of that offer by the Lower Court:

The written offer of First Media was accepted through order of this Court dated February 22, 1974, and in such a manner as to create a lawful and enforceable contract. (Conclusions of Law, R. 409.) (Emphasis added.)

Throughout the entirety of their brief, appellants conveniently overlook this fundamental contractual concept as well as principles of law and equity related to the administration of judicial sales. For instance, at pages 42-43 of their brief, appellants argue that a bid accepted by a receiver but not the Court does not give rise to the

creation of a vested right and cite various references including 2 Clark on Receivers, § 519 at 835, and 50 C. J. S., *Judicial Sales*, § 22. What is completely ignored by the appellants, however, is that the Lower Court itself *did accept* the offer of FMC through its order of February 22, 1974, as made abundantly clear by its Conclusions of Law, *supra*. Thus, the law and procedure discussed by the appellants throughout their brief was adhered to in that the FMC, Shaw, and Robison offers were discussed with *both* the Receiver and the Court on February 6, 1974, and then after the Receiver made his recommendation the Lower Court took the separate and distinct step of accepting the FMC offer, thereby giving judicial approval to the sale (R. 401).*

*In attempting to avoid the consequences of the Lower Court's acceptance order of February 22, 1974, and contrary to fundamental principles of appellate argument, the appellants argue facts which are *not* in the record with respect to a hearing on March 15, 1974. For instance, on page 35 of their brief they state: "At the March 15th hearing the Court expressly advised those present that he had not approved any sale to the Intervenor and that he had only approved Intervenor's offer as a basis for negotiations." No citation is given for such a statement in the record because it does not exist. The record is clear that at the March 15 hearing, the Lower Court *denied* the objections of Robison to the Court's February 22 Order (R. 182). In fact, one of the objections of Robison to the February 22 order was that the Court's *acceptance* of the FMC offer was "premature," thus indicating that Robison indeed believed that the Lower Court accepted the FMC offer. (Appellants' Brief, p. 14; R. 177.)

The appellant's unsupported assertion, *supra*, only compounds the error in appellants' Statement of Facts. In the first full paragraph on page 15 of their brief, appellants state that the Lower Court did not dispute the contents of an affidavit of an attorney that was proffered into evidence, the affidavit stating what the Court supposedly said on March 15. (There was no transcript for said hearing.) It is incredibly obvious that the Lower Court did not have

Appellants make the novel argument at pages 25-28 of their brief that "acceptance" and "confirmation" of an offer are two distinct acts required of a court in a judicial sale. The authorities cited by appellants suggest that the requirement may exist that where an offer is first accepted by a sale officer *other than the court* itself, such as by a receiver, there may then be a requirement of a separate "acceptance" or "confirmation" by the Court. But there is absolutely no requirement for two acts where the Court itself is the accepting officer. In *Freebill v. Greenfield*, 204 F. 2d 907 (2 Cir. 1953) (cited by appellants, p. 41) this principle is clarified, as "confirmation" by the Court was sought because the person actually conducting the sale and receiving the bid or offer was a trustee in bankruptcy. The acceptance or confirmation by the Court was not a *second act by the Court.*, but its *only* act of acceptance following the first action of the

*Continued.

to disagree with the contents in the affidavit, as the affidavit was *not* admitted into evidence. (Tr. July 3, 1974, p. 3.)

FMC indicated to the Court by way of direct refutation to what appellants claimed the Court had said at the March 15, 1974, hearing that it had extensive notes that it would enter into evidence as to what was said at the March 15 hearing. (Tr. July 3, 1974, p. 13. See also Tr. June 28, 1974, pp. 43-44.) This evidence was unnecessary due to the failure of the appellants to put in any evidence as to what the Court said. Appellants on page 15 of their brief say that the affidavit of Robison's former attorney was "surprisingly not admitted . . ." It was not admitted because having notice for nearly two weeks of the hearing, they failed to produce Robison's former attorney who lived in Provo and who attended part of the hearing to testify in person subject to cross examination. Thus, the affidavit in an evidentiary trial-type hearing was nothing more than rank hearsay. To then argue in their brief something as being fact, which is not in the record, goes beyond the bounds of appellate propriety.

trustee. Of a similar vein is *Morrison v. Burnette*, 154 F. 617 (8 Cir. 1907) (cited in appellants' brief, p. 41), wherein the two acts of acceptance and confirmation refer to the sale officer first taking the bid and then the Court confirming or accepting such:

... that the bidder at a sale by a master or receiver . . . buys subject to the confirmation or avoidance of the sale by the court. (p. 263.)

Thus, the entire thrust of the appellants' argument is misplaced as the Lower Court in this case *did* accept or confirm the FMC offer by order separate from earlier action of the Receiver.

2. The Lower Court Did Not Recognize or Permit An "Alternative Approach," But Rather Ordered Settlement and Sale to FMC as Purchaser in Accordance With Its Offer.

Appellants argue that until July, 1974, the Lower Court had followed a procedure permitting an *alternative approach* to the disposition of the stockholder dispute:

On the one hand, it appointed the Receiver to manage the business and *solicit bids* from prospective buyers. On the other hand, it gave forceful encouragement to the parties to settle so that a sale would be unnecessary. This dual approach to a resolution of the problem is consistent with all action taken by the owners, their counsel, the Receiver and his counsel and by the Court itself

throughout the proceedings until July, 1974. (Appellants' Brief, p. 29.) (Emphasis added.)

Not only is this self serving statement wholly unsupported by the record, but, as a fundamental matter of equity and the orderly conduct of judicial sales, any such dual approach by the Lower Court would clearly constitute a fraud upon *bona fide* third-party purchasers. There is no basis for such alleged schizophrenia and uncertainty in the court order of February 22, 1974 (R. 173).

It is submitted that third persons who filed solicited offers with the Court's Receiver in good faith, such as the Ross Davis and the Brockbank groups and FMC, were entitled to rely upon a *bona fide* judicial sale procedure. These good faith offerors were entitled to rely upon orderly procedures and the assurance that they were not engaged in a meaningless exercise in the event of acceptance of an offer by the Court itself. *A fortiori*, once its deadlined offer was in fact accepted by the Court on February 22, 1974, FMC was entitled to rely on the fact that the Court or its Receiver would not inconsistently later approve action which would nullify the Court's own acceptance.* The record lends no support whatsoever

*At pages 9-10 of their brief, appellants include a quotation from the February 6, 1974 transcript suggesting the Court was still encouraging settlement. First, it should be noted that the colloquy quoted by appellants from the February 6 hearing is argued out of context. The Court was suggesting that perhaps there could be agreement as to which *one* of the *three* competing offers should be accepted. Secondly, the three parties who made offers (FMC, Shaw & Robison) did not agree as to which one should be accepted, and the Court proceeded to take evidence so that it could make the decision. (Tr. Feb. 6, 1974, pp. 2-6.)

to the theory that the Lower Court was involved in the duplicity of such an inconsistent approach after it ordered acceptance of the FMC offer thereby creating vested rights, *supra*.*

3. The Lower Court's Conclusion That
FMC Acquired Vested Rights Based
Upon Acceptance of the Original FMC
Offer is Consonant With Fundamental
Principles of Contract Law.

The Lower Court concluded that "Through acceptance of its written offer, First Media acquired vested rights." (Conclusions of Law, R. 409.) *Daum Construction Company v. Child*, 247 P. 2d 817, 819 (Ut. 1952). See also *Thornton v. Pasch*, 104 Ut. 313, 139 P. 2d 1002 (1943). In its written Ruling, the Court fully articulated the fundamental principle that failure to recognize the creation of vested rights in FMC "... would be unjust, and would render proceedings under the pertinent statute useless" (Ruling, R. 398).

FMC asserted in its June 7, 1974, Petition in Intervention that it "... acquired vested rights by reason of proceedings which have heretofore occurred, and failure

*The fact that the Court did not take such a dual approach is emphasized by a later order, dated March 27, 1974, wherein the Court expressly ordered that all disputes between Glenn C. Shaw and Ashley L. Robison regarding their ownership, financial disputes "... are hereby referred to Division One of this Court for trial setting ..." (R. 182). The Lower Court, by this order, stressed again that it was involved in the sale with FMC at this point and not the basic shareholder feud.

to permit intervention would deny petitioner's rights including due process of law" (R. 268). Appellants inconsistently appear to have acquiesced in this position, both Shaw and Robison having filed pleadings consenting to the intervention (R. 296, 298).

Appellants suggest that because of the Receiver's May 11, 1974, Motion seeking approval of the long form "Agreement for the Sale and Purchase of Assets," FMC acquired no rights through the Court's earlier acceptance order of February 22 (Appellants Brief, p. 36). Such an argument is patently contrary to basic contract law wherein it is not unusual for there to be a binding written agreement between parties on basic terms to be later expressed in a longer, more detailed document. The preparation of the longer form does *not* destroy the binding effect of the shorter form. *Bunnell v. Bills*, 13 Utah 2d 83, 368 P. 2d 597 (Utah 1962); *Phillips and Easton v. International*, 512 P. 2d 379 (Kan. 1973). An example is the court suggested relationship of an earnest money receipt to the longer real estate contract form:

COURT: Then what do you claim for the contract that you now have submitted to the receiver?

HARDY (Vice President, FMC): What do you mean what do I claim?

COURT: What is there in that contract — is that contract any different than the offer in January?

HARDY: In substance it is not different.

There are flushing (sic fleshing) out of what I would call basic first principles, boilerplate language, representations of warranties, that sort of thing that is in addition that would need to be approved.

COURT: I am taking what you are trying to express *is analogous to an earnest money receipt* in a final real estate contract. Is that what you are talking about?

HARDY: I am not a real estate lawyer, but I think that is fair. (Tr. June 28, 1974, p. 61.) (Emphasis added.)

This characterization was also made by the Receiver's counsel as he, too, said that the FMC offer "had the basic elements." (Tr. June 28, 1974, p. 147-148.)

The last paragraph of the Lower Court's February 22 acceptance Order* plainly shows the intent of the Court in taking such a bifurcated short form/long form approach, i.e., (1) to first *accept* the written offer of FMC, thereby binding the parties (with a comma inserted *before* the "and," thus clearly breaking the thought) *and* then (2) to proceed to finalize the transaction pursuant to the terms of the accepted short form agreement. This is consistent with the Court's concern about the expiration of FMC's offer expressed at the February 6, 1974, hearing and shows a clear intent to bind FMC — thus creating a "binder" like agreement so as to justify FMC

*"It is therefore ordered that the report and recommendation of the receiver *be accepted by the court* and filed in this proceeding, *and* that the receiver proceed to accept the offer of F.M.C., Inc., *and* proceed with all reasonable dispatch to conclude sale to that offeror."

and the Receiver expending time to prepare a more formal long form agreement in conformance with the offer.*

A careful review of the detailed FMC offer shows that it contains *all* material terms essential to the creation of a contract such as a description of what was to be purchased, price and the procedures to complete the transfer of KOVO, Inc.'s assets and business. (FMC Exh. 1, June 28, 1974, hearing.) The FMC offer contained definite, certain and enforceable guidelines. Under the contract doctrine of mutuality, FMC *could not* have arbitrarily withdrawn from the transaction. By the same token the Receiver could no longer entertain other offers, *e.g.*, such as the one attempted on behalf of Messrs. Robison, Hesterman, Howard Bradshaw and/or American Savings and Loan Association on May 31, 1974, *infra*.

Recognition of the binding effect of a short form

*Indeed from appellants' suggestion that FMC's January 15 offer was not accepted by the Court on February 22 and that it could not be accepted until Court approval of the long form agreement the absurd conclusion necessarily follows that FMC's time-deadlined January 15 offer must somehow still be open and that it can be drawn down or otherwise snapped up by the Court at any time and at *its pleasure* wholly beyond the control of offeror FMC. This open ended acceptance condition obviously is not the case. FMC's January 15 written offer was formally and deliberately extended *twice* in order to accommodate the Lower Court's schedule for considering the Receiver's Report and Recommendation and the ultimate Court acceptance of an offer. As fully set forth in FMC's offering documentations, as amended and on the record in this proceeding, such an open-ended offer was neither intended nor authorized by FMC. Prompt acceptance or rejection of its time-deadlined offer was contemplated by FMC and the Court. Simply stated, it was to be an "up" or "down" matter, as satisfied by the Lower Court in its Acceptance Order of February 22, 1974.

agreement, without reference to contemplated later formalization and detailed refinement thereof, and without all of the traditional "boilerplate" language found in a longer form is well supported in the law. In *City Stores Co. v. Ammerman*, 226 F. Supp. 766 (Dist. Ct. D. C. 1967), *aff'd.*, 394 F. 2d 950 (D. C. Cir. 1968), plaintiff sought specific performance of a letter agreement from the defendant stating that the plaintiff could be given an "... opportunity to become one of our ... center's major tenants with rental and terms at least equal to that of any other major department store in the center." *City Stores, supra*, at 770. Even though certain terms were not spelled out in minute detail in the letter such as building design and specifications, the Court had no difficulty enforcing the agreement because such terms would be "... within the customary contemplation of parties entering into shopping center agreements of the type at issue in this case" (p. 771). *Walsh v. Rundlette*, 9 D. C. (2 Mac.) 114 (1875).

The Court in *Morris v. Ballard*, 56 U. S. App. D. C. 383; 16 F. 2d 175 (1926) upheld the efficacy of an option to purchase property with a provision that the price was to be "on terms to be agreed upon." Upon careful review of the law, the Court held that this:

... was in good conscience a stipulation that he would in fact agree with plaintiff *upon reasonable terms of payment, and would not arbitrarily refuse to proceed with the sale* ... 56 App.

D. C. 383, 384; 16 F. 2d 175, 176. (Emphasis added.)*

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